



## BOROUGH OF WASHINGTON

100 BELVIDERE AVENUE • WASHINGTON, NEW JERSEY 07882-1426

PHONE: (908) 689-3600

www.washingtonboro-nj.org

FAX: (908) 689-9485

*A Council Manager Community*

### **Keeping of Agricultural Animals Application**

**\$25.00 fee**

#### **Applicant Information:**

Name: \_\_\_\_\_ Phone Number: \_\_\_\_\_

Address: \_\_\_\_\_

Email Address: \_\_\_\_\_

**Site Address:** \_\_\_\_\_ **Block:** \_\_\_\_\_ **Lot:** \_\_\_\_\_

#### **Type of Dwelling:**

\_\_\_\_ Single family \_\_\_\_ Two-family \_\_\_\_ Multi-family \_\_\_\_ Townhouse \_\_\_\_ Apt./Condo \_\_\_\_

**Lot size:** \_\_\_\_\_ **Acres**

***Less than 2.99 acres: \$15 Agricultural Animal License fee***

***Greater than 3.00 acres: \$25 Agricultural Animal License fee***

#### **Coop/Enclosure Information:**

Number of domestic fowl: \_\_\_\_\_

Dimensions of domestic fowl coop: \_\_\_\_\_

Location of coop/enclosure: \_\_\_\_\_

Describe how domestic fowl will be protected from predators and rodents:

---

---

---

Describe how food and waste for domestic fowl will be maintained:

---

---

### THE FOLLOWING MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH APPLICATION

Please submit a scaled sketch with proposed improvements for your domestic fowl. The sketch shall include:

- Location and size of your lot
- Location and size of your house
- Location, size and type of all structures and containment areas for the domestic fowl (coop, pen and fencing)
- Setbacks of domestic fowl structure
- \$25.00 Application fee (Agricultural Animal License Fee is separate)

### PERMITEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

By initialing the following items and providing signature below, you acknowledge that you understand the following:

- \_\_\_\_\_ No person may keep a rooster.
- \_\_\_\_\_ There shall be no butchering of domestic fowls on site.
- \_\_\_\_\_ No eggs shall be sold or made available for public consumption.
- \_\_\_\_\_ No person may allow domestic fowl to fly or range freely outside an enclosure.
- \_\_\_\_\_ No person may keep domestic fowl inside a building used wholly, or in part, for dwelling purposes.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Domestic Fowl enclosures must be clean, dry, odor-free and kept in neat and sanitary conditions at all times.
- \_\_\_\_\_ Domestic Fowl must be provided a secure coop/henhouse that meet **Ord. 2023-11**
- \_\_\_\_\_ All food and water stored for use of the hens shall be kept in a rodent and predator proof container.
- \_\_\_\_\_ The keeping of chickens shall be in such a manner as to not create a public nuisance.

I have read and understand the conditions under which I may keep chickens, as set forth in this application and **Borough of Washington Chapter 35A Keeping of Agricultural Animals** and I agree to abide by these conditions. Failure to remain compliant will be subject to a fine or the removal of all chickens and chicken-related structures.

\_\_\_\_\_  
Applicant Signature

\_\_\_\_\_  
Date

OFFICE USE ONLY

**Zoning Department Date:** \_\_\_\_\_ **Initial:** \_\_\_\_\_

**Zoning Approval:** \_\_\_\_\_ **Yes** \_\_\_\_\_ **No**    **\$25 Zoning application fee: Cash:** \_\_\_\_\_ **Check:** \_\_\_\_\_

\*\*\*\*\*

**Clerk's Office Date:** \_\_\_\_\_ **Initial:** \_\_\_\_\_

**Agricultural Animal License #:** \_\_\_\_\_    **< 2.99 acres:** \_\_\_\_\_ **\$15 License fee**

**> 3.00 acres:** \_\_\_\_\_ **\$25 License fee**

**Animal Waste Management Plan Submitted:** \_\_\_\_\_ **Yes** \_\_\_\_\_ **No**    **Cash:** \_\_\_\_\_ **Check:** \_\_\_\_\_

## ORDINANCE 2023-11

### Ordinance Amending Chapter 35A of the Code of the Borough of Washington, entitled “Agricultural Animals, Keeping of ”

**WHEREAS**, the Borough of Washington Chapter 35A of the Code permits the keeping of certain agricultural animals on a residential property;

**WHEREAS**, *Rutgers Cooperative Extension and the New Jersey Agricultural Experiment Station have developed recommended animal husbandry management practices agricultural animals on residential*

**WHEREAS**, all livestock in New Jersey must be raised in conditions to meet or exceed the standards set by N.J.A.C. 2:8 – Humane Treatment of Domestic Livestock.

**WHEREAS**, the criteria to be considered in keeping agricultural animals on residential properties are Aesthetics, Animal density, Animal health, Animal husbandry, Animal welfare, Environmental stress, Municipal administration, Safety, Shelter and confinement need Waste management.

**WHEREAS**, the Borough Council desires to amend its ordinances to expand the agricultural animals to be permitted on residential properties; and

**WHEREAS**, the Borough Council desires to further amend its ordinances to conform with the animal husbandry management practices developed by the Rutgers Cooperative Extension and the New Jersey Agricultural Experiment Station and in conformance with the requirements of N.J.A.C. 2-8 et seq.; and

**Section 1.** Chapter 35A of the Code of the Borough of Washington, entitled “Agricultural Animals, Keeping of” shall be amended as follows (deletions noted with strikethrough ~~thus~~ and additions noted in bold italic *thus*):

### § 35A-1. Definitions.

The words hereinafter defined shall have the meanings herein indicated for the purposes of this chapter, as follows:

#### **AGRICULTURAL ANIMAL**

Any animal other than a dog or cat as defined in this chapter whose ownership and keeping is not otherwise regulated by the State of New Jersey or the United States Government and that lives primarily outdoors and/or outside of a primary structure on any property located within the Borough.

#### **ANIMAL UNIT**

A unit of measure equaling 1,000 pounds of live animal weight.

#### **BOROUGH**

The Borough of Washington, in the County of Warren.

#### **ANIMAL WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN**

**Written procedures for the collection, use and disposal of animal waste that conforms with the standards established by New Jersey Department of Agriculture Division of Agricultural and Natural Resources and approved by the Borough's Animal Control Officer.**

#### **CHICKEN-POULTRY**

Any female or hen domesticated subspecies of the red junglefowl, also known as *Gallus gallus domesticus*, *domestic fowl*, such as *chickens, turkeys, ducks, and geese*, and specifically excluding males or roosters, and guinea fowl.

#### **CHICKEN POULTRY ENCLOSURE**

Any chicken house, chicken yard, chicken coop, chicken run, cage or other structure, or combination thereof, for the harboring and keeping of any **poultry that conforms with the requirements of N.J.A.C. 2-8** chickens.

### **§ 35A-2. Requirements for keeping of chickens poultry.**

- A. The keeping of chickens **poultry, for personal use**, shall be restricted to one to four family residential properties. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to permit the keeping of ~~chickens~~ **poultry** on multifamily residential properties or any commercial or public property.
- B. ~~Chickens~~ **Poultry** kept within the Borough shall be required to be housed in a ~~chicken~~ **poultry** enclosure providing adequate shelter and protection from wind, precipitation, sun, cold, and heat with not less than three square feet of interior space per chicken **and with not less than six square feet of interior space per bird for all other poultry**. ~~Chickens~~ **Poultry** shall be permitted to "free range" on residential property, provided the property is enclosed by a fence not less than four feet in height and free of any opening large enough to permit passage of a ~~chicken~~ **bird** of any size. ~~Chicken~~ **Poultry** enclosures located on unfenced properties shall be required to include a completely enclosed ~~chicken~~ run attached thereto which provides 10 square feet of space per ~~chicken~~ **bird** as well as protection from predators on the top, bottom, and sides constructed of wire cloth, woven wire, or like material. Verification of adequacy of fences and/or ~~chicken~~ **Poultry** enclosures and runs shall **conform with the Rutgers Cooperative Extension Or New Jersey Agricultural Experiment Station standards and shall** be subject to approval by the Zoning Officer with the advice and consent of the Animal Control Officer.
- C. ~~Chicken~~ **Poultry** enclosures on any lot shall be located not less than ~~75~~ **30** feet from any dwelling house located on any property other than the dwelling house occupied by the owner of the ~~chickens~~ **Poultry enclosure** enclosed therein and shall further be located in accordance with any and all regulations regarding the permitting, construction, and location of accessory structures provided for in Chapter 94, Zoning and Land Development.
- D. ~~Chicken~~ **Poultry** enclosures shall be kept in a clean and sanitary condition which will prevent them from becoming a nuisance or annoyance or interfering with the general well-being of other residents of the Borough.
- E. The keeping of ~~chickens~~ **Poultry** within the Borough of Washington shall require a license issued by the Borough Clerk, **the filing of the Animal Waste Management Plan with the Borough Clerk**, and zoning approval for a ~~chicken~~ **Poultry** enclosure must be obtained as a prerequisite before a chicken-keeping license can be issued.
- F. For all lots of 2.99 acres in area or less, the keeping of not more than six ~~chickens~~ **Poultry** shall be permitted. No other type of agricultural animals may be kept on lots of 2.99 acres or less.

G. For all lots of 3.0 acres to 3.99 acres in area, the keeping of not more than four ~~chickens~~ **Poultry** per acre shall be permitted. No other type of agricultural animals may be kept on lots of 3.00 acres or less.

### § 35A-3. Requirements for keeping of agricultural animals of any kind.

A. The keeping of agricultural animals of any kind, as defined in this chapter, for any purpose, with the exception of ~~chickens~~ **Poultry**, as defined in this chapter and subject to certain regulations contained herein, shall be expressly prohibited on lots of less than 4.0 acres. On lots of 4.0 acres or more, the keeping of the equivalent of 0.25 animal unit per acre shall be permitted.

B. Animals permitted on lots of 4.0 acres or more.

(1) In accordance with foregoing Subsection A with regard to animal units per acre, only the following animals or variants of animals listed herein shall be permitted to be housed on lots of 4.0 acres or more:

(a) Horses, miniature horses, or ponies.

(b) Dairy or beef cattle.

(c) Sheep.

(d) Goats.

(2) Any animal or variant not specifically listed herein shall not be permitted to be housed on lots of 4.0 acres or more.

C. Animals listed in foregoing Subsection B must be provided with not less than one securely fenced acre, subject to zoning approval by the Zoning Officer in accordance with Chapter 94, Zoning and Land Development, with the advice and consent of the Animal Control Officer.

D. The keeping of animals listed in foregoing Subsection B within the Borough of Washington shall require a license issued by the Borough Clerk, and zoning approval for an animal enclosure must be obtained as a prerequisite before an agricultural animal-keeping license can be issued.

E. ***The submission of a Animal Waste Management Plan.***

### § 35A-4. Licensing fee.

A. Persons wishing to keep agricultural animals permitted by this chapter shall pay a licensing fee annually as follows:

(1) Agricultural animal license, lots of 3.99 acres or less: \$15.

(2) Agricultural animal license, lots of 4.0 acres or more: \$25.

### § 35A-5. Nonconforming lots or animals.

A. Any person owning, harboring, or keeping agricultural animals not specifically permitted by this chapter, or owning, harboring, or keeping agricultural animals in such a manner inconsistent with this

chapter, shall be required upon passage of this chapter to dispose of, relinquish, or otherwise convey said animals in order to comply with this chapter.

***B. Any person may petition the Mayor and Council for relief from the lot size requirements set forth in this chapter by making an application to Borough Clerk.***

## **§ 35A-6. Slaughter of animals prohibited.**

No person shall slaughter any agricultural animal regulated under this chapter for any purpose.

## **§ 35A-7. Violations and penalties.**

Any person, firm or corporation who shall violate any of the provisions of this chapter shall, upon conviction, be punished by a fine not more than \$500 or by imprisonment in the county jail for a term not to exceed 90 days, or by both such fine and imprisonment, and each violation of any of the provisions of this chapter, and each day the same is violated, shall be deemed and taken to be a separate and distinct offense.

**Section 2.** All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are repealed as to such inconsistencies.

**Section 3.** If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.

**Section 4.** This Ordinance shall take effect upon final passage and publication according to law.

Introduced: May 18, 2023

Public Hearing/Adoption: June 20, 2023

# Stay healthy around animals!



Animals can carry germs that make people **sick**



**Never** eat, drink, or put anything in your mouth around animals.



Older adults, pregnant women, and young children should be **extra careful** around animals.



**Wash your hands** with soap and water right after visiting animals.



[www.cdc.gov/handwashing](http://www.cdc.gov/handwashing)



U.S. Department of  
Health and Human Services  
Centers for Disease  
Control and Prevention

# HEALTHY FAMILIES AND FLOCKS

Live poultry, such as chickens, ducks, geese, and turkeys, often carry harmful germs such as *Salmonella*. While it usually doesn't make the birds sick, *Salmonella* can cause serious illness when it is passed to people.

## HANDWASHING PROTECTS YOU FROM GERMS



- Always wash your hands with soap and water right after touching live poultry or anything in the area where they live and roam.
- Adults should supervise handwashing for young children.
- Use hand sanitizer if soap and water are not readily available.

## HANDLE BIRDS SAFELY



- Children younger than 5 years, adults older than 65 years, and people with weakened immune systems should not handle or touch chicks, ducklings, or other live poultry.
- Do not bring chicks, ducklings and other live poultry to schools, childcare centers, or nursing homes.
- Do not snuggle or kiss the birds, touch your mouth, or eat or drink around live poultry.

## SAFELY CLEAN COOPS

- Clean any equipment used to care for live poultry outside, such as cages or feed or water containers.
- Set aside a pair of shoes to wear while taking care of poultry and keep those shoes outside of the house.



## POULTRY BELONG OUTSIDE

- Do not let live poultry inside the house, especially in kitchens.
- Do not let live poultry in areas where food or drink is prepared, served, or stored.



U.S. Department of  
Health and Human Services  
Centers for Disease  
Control and Prevention

**Have a Backyard Flock? Don't Wing it.**  
Visit [www.cdc.gov/features/salmonellapoultry](http://www.cdc.gov/features/salmonellapoultry)  
for more information